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• Russell Bedford 
takin.s you further 

Date: 24 November 2023 

The Board of Directors 
KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
H-G-03A, Glomac Square 
Jalan SS6/16A 
Kelana Jaya 
47301 Petaling Jaya 

Dear Sirs 

Russell Bedford LC PL T 
(LLP0030621-LCA & AF1237) 
Chartered Account ants 

.!J '*' Jl.tt~+i'f-ttt <7 "'~1li 
~ 37.level21, Mereu 3 
No. 3, Jalai1 Bangsar 
KLEcoCity 
59200 Kuaa lJ.fl1Jur -T: -+00322026666 
F: -+£0322026688 
E: maiI@!russeIlbedford.oom.my 
W. w.wI.russe/tledford.ccmmy 

REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' OPINION ON THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTAINED IN THE ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT OF KUCINGKO BERHAD (formerly known as 
Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 

Opinion 

We have audited the combined financial statements of the Kucingko Berhad (formerly known as Kucingo 
Sdn Bhd) ("Kucingko· or "the CompanV ) and its combin ing entities as defined in Note 2.2.1 (collectively 
referred to as the 'Group' ), which comprises Ihe combined statements of financial position as at 31 
December 2020, 31 December 2021 , 31 December 2022 and 30 June 2023, combined statements of 
comprehensive income, combined statements of changes in equity and combined statements of cash 
flows of the Group for the financial years ended 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and 31 
December 2022 and for the financial period 1 January 2023 to 30 June 2023, and notes to the combined 
financial statements , including a summary of Significant accounting policies as set out on page 13 to 24. 

The combined financial statements of the Group have been prepared for inclusion in the prospectus of 
the Company in connection with the listing of and quotation for the entire enlarged share capi tal of the 
Company on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad ("Bursa Securities'). This report is 
required by the Prospectus Gu idelines issued by the Securi ties Commission Malaysia and for no other 
purpose, 

In our opinion, the combined financial statements give a true and fair view of the combined fi nancial 
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 30 June 
2023, and of their combined financial performance and their combined cash flows for the financial years 
ended 31 December 2020 , 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 and for the financial period 1 
January 202310 30 June 2023 in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and the 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Prospectus Gu idelines as issued by the Securities 
Commission Malaysia. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Approved Standards on Auditing in Malaysia and the 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilit ies under those standards are further described in 
the Reporting Accountants' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Combined Financial Statements section 
of our reporting accountants' report. 

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the By·Laws (On Professional Ethics, Conduct and 
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA By·Laws·) and the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants' International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
International Independence Standards) ("IESBA Code') and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
respons ibilities in accordance with the MIA By·Laws and the IESBA Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion . 

Member of Russell Bedford International - a global netwm of Independent professional services firms 
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Responsibilities of the directors for the combined financial statements 

'" ----,=~ 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the combined financial statements 
of the Group that give a true and fair view In accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting 
Standards and the International Financial Reporting Standards. The directors are also responsible for 
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the combined 
financial statements of the Group that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the combined financial statements of the Group, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing , as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate 
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Reporting accountants' respons ibilities for the audit of the combined f inancial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements of 
the Group as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Approved Standards on Auditing in Malaysia 
and the International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered malerial if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the combined f inancial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Approved Standards on Audi ting in Malaysia and the 
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of malerial misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks , and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nol 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control re levant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the director's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisls related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our accountants' 
report to the related disclosures in the combined financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate , to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern . 

2 
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Reporting accountants' responsibilities for the audit of the combined financial statements 
(continued) 

• Evaluate the overal' presentation, structure and content of the combined financia l statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the combined financial statements of the Group represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner thai achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the combined financial statements of 
the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion . 

We communicate with the directors regarding. among other mailers, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

Other matters 

The comparative information in respect of the combined statements of comprehensive income, 
combined statements of changes in equity. combined statements of cash flow and the relevant notes to 
the combined financial statements for the financial period 1 January 2022 to 30 June 2022 have not 
been audited. 

Restriction on distribution and use 

This report is made solely to comply with the Prospectus Guidelines as issued by the Securities 
Commission Malaysia and for the inclusion in the prospectus to be issued in connection with the 
admission of Kucingko to the Official List of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and the listing of and 
quotation for the entire enlarged issued share capital of the Company on the ACE Market of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad and for no other purposes and should not be relied upon for any other 
purposes. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

RUSSELL BEDFORD LC PL T 
LLP0030621 ·LCA & AF 1237 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Kuala Lumpur 

LEW CHUI HOONG 
0348110112024 J 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

Member of Russell Bedford International - a global netwol1i; of independent professional services firms 

~, ~ "., 
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KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kuci ngo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Audited Unaud ited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

Note RM RM RM RM RM 

Revenue 4 11,028,261 12,482 ,914 23,485,035 17,675,422 14.922.805 

Other operating 
income 410,720 855,486 948,449 782,864 697,195 

Changes in 
inventories (29,264) (31,278) (60,345) (65,997) (20,658) 

Staff costs 5 (5,071,484) (4,457,206) (9, 404,425) (7 ,71 2,751 ) (7,376,079) 

Depreciation (520,309) (527,296) (1 ,030,437) (1 ,045,011) (1,31 9,468) 

Allowance for 
expected credit 
loss, net of 
recovery 1,288,390 

Other operating 
expenses (2.042 ,106) (1,7 55,552) (4,544,834) (2,824,085) (2,011 ,913) 

Profit from 
operations 6 3,775,818 6,567,068 9,393,443 8,098,832 4.891,882 

Finance income 7 107,706 71.332 185.095 169,041 111,492 

Finance costs 8 (76,1 91 ) (56,696) (1 44,391 ) (116 ,753) (112,955) 

Net finance 
income/(costs) 31 ,515 14,636 40,704 52,288 (1.463) 

Profit before tax 3,807 ,333 6,581,704 9,434,147 8,151 ,120 4,890,419 

Income tax 
expense 9 (786,142) (602,862) (1,454,854) (1, 666,736) (1,213 ,046) 

Net profit/Total 
comprehensive 
income for the 
period/year 3,021, 191 5,978.842 7,979,293 6,484.384 3.677 ,373 

Net profit/(Ioss)/ 
Total 
comprehensive 
incomef(loss) 
attributable to: 

Owners of the 
Company 3,021 ,191 5,978,842 7,979,293 6,486,667 3,679,913 

Non controlling 
interest (2,283) (2,540) 

3,021 ,191 5,978,842 7,979,293 6,484,384 3,677,373 

4 
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KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

Audited 
30 .6.2023 

Note RM 
Non current assets 
Plant and equipment 
Right of use assets 
Investment in subsidiaries 
Goodwill 
Deferred tax assets 

Current assets 

Inventories 
Trade receivables 
Other receivables, deposits 

and prepayments 
Contract assets 
Tax recoverable 
Fixed deposits with licensed 

banks 
Cash and bank balances 

Total assets 

Equity 
Share capital 
Invested equity 
Retained earnings 

Equity attributable to 
owners of the Group 

Non~controlling interests 

Total equity 

Non current liabilities 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 

15 
16 

17 
4 

18 
19 

20 
20 

Borrowings 21 
Lease liabilities 22 

Current liabilities 
Trade payables 23 
Other payables and accruals 24 
Contract liabilities 4 
Borrowings 21 
Lease liabilities 22 
Tax payable 

Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

1,481,530 
2,826,206 

62,819 
12,500 

4,383,055 

4,390 
4,282,821 

739,012 
629,775 

7,175,000 
1,750,643 

14,581 ,641 

18,964,696 

2 
6,611 ,427 
5,991 ,915 

12,603,344 

12,603,344 

394,985 
2,382,039 

2,777,024 

116,352 
2,156 ,557 

108,675 
204,435 
533 ,311 
464,998 

3,584,328 

6,361,352 

18,964,696 

Audited 
31.12.2022 

RM 

1,060,776 
2,884,599 

62 ,819 
12,500 

4,020,694 

3,801 
1,976,051 

973,979 
760,460 

-

9,675,000 
5,826,1 58 

19,215,449 

23,236,143 

6,611,427 
9,174,851 

15,786,278 

15,786,278 

498,137 
2,457,922 

2,956,059 

5,016 
2,606,304 

921 ,857 
200,868 
497,379 
262,382 

4,493,806 

7,449,865 

23,236,143 

Audited 
31.12.2021 

RM 

901,877 
1,576,483 

5,449 
62,819 
12,500 

2,559,128 

3,378 
2,923,350 

1,783,013 
-

1,083 

9,760,000 
2,10B,908 

16,579,732 

19,138,860 

6,611,427 
7,906,308 

14,517,735 
22,436 

14,540,171 

680,376 
1,089,852 

1.770,228 

1,747 
1,505,703 

169,51 4 
194,004 
550,138 
407,355 

2,828,461 

4,598,689 

19,138,860 

Audit ed 
31 .12.2020 

RM 

1,282,807 
2,189,231 

5,449 
62,819 
62,300 

3,602,606 

1,241,055 

1,787,720 

1,083 

7,647,159 
6,600,231 

17,277,248 

20,879,854 

2,959,176 
12,080,337 

15,039,513 
24,719 

15,064,232 

874,380 
1,639,990 

2,514,370 

30,789 
2,159,822 

-
125,620 
591 ,102 
393,919 

3,301,252 

5,815,622 

20,879,854 

5 
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KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

Equity 
attributable No" 

Invested Retained to owners of controlling 
equ ity earnings the Company interest Total 

Audited RM RM RM RM RM 

At 1 January 2020 2,959,176 10,116,746 13,075,922 27,259 13,103,181 

Dividends (Note 25) (1,716,322) (1,716,322) (1,716,322) 

Net profitf(loss)rTotal comprehensive incomeJ(loss) for 
the year 3,679,913 3,679,913 (2,540) 3,677,373 

At 31 December 2020 2,959,176 12,080,337 15,039,513 24,719 15,064,232 

Transactions with owners: 

Issue of shares (Note 20) 3,652,251 I - 3,652,251 

: I 
3,652.251 

Dividends (Note 25) (10,660,696) (10,660,696) (10,660,696) 

Total transactions with owners 3,652,251 {I 0,660,696) (7.008,445) (7,008,445) 

Net profitf(loss)rT otal comprehensive incomeJ(loss) for 
the year 6,486,667 6,486,667 (2.283) 6,484,384 

At 31 December 2021 6,611,427 7,906,308 14,517,735 22,436 14,540,171 

Transactions with owners: 

Dividends (Note 25) 

: I 
(6,703,186) (6,703,186) (22'43~) 1 (6,703,186) 

Acquisillon of non controll ing interest (7,564) (7,564) (30,000) 

Total transactions with owners {6,71 0,750) (6,710,750) (22,436) (6,733, 186) 

Net profitfT olal comprehensive income for the year 7.979,293 7,979,293 7,979,293 

At 31 December 2022 6,611,427 9,174,851 15,786,278 15,786,278 

6 
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KUCINGKO BERHAO 
(Formei1y known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued) 

Audited 

At 1 January 2023 

Transactions with owners: 

Issue of shares (Note 20) 

Dividends (Note 25) 

Total transactions with owners 

Net profiVTotal comprehensive income for the period 

AI 30 June 2023 

Unaudited 

At 1 January 2022 

Transactions with owners: 

Dividends (Note 25) 

Acquisition of non controlling interest 

Total transactions with owners 

Net profiVTotal comprehensive income for the period 

At 30 June 2022 

Share 
capital 

RM 

'I 1 , 
, 

Invested Retained 
equity earn ings 

RM RM 

6,611 ,427 7,906,308 

: I 
(4,253,875) 

(7,564) 

(4,261 ,439) 

5,978,842 

6,611,427 9,623,71 t 

Invested 
equ ity 

RM 

6,611,427 

: 1 

6,61 1,427 

Equity 
attributable 

to owners of 
the Company 

RM 

14,517,735 

(4,253,875) 

(7,564) 

(4,261 ,439) 

5,978,842 

16,235,138 

Retained 
earnin9S 

RM 

9,174,851 

(6,204, 127) 

(6,204,127) 

3,021,191 

5,991 ,915 

Noo 
controlling 

interest 
RM 

22,436 

(22.43~) 1 
(22,436) 

Total 
RM 

15,786.278 

, 
(6,204,127) 

(6,204,125) 

3,021,191 

12,603,344 

Total 
RM 

14,540,171 

(4,253,875) 

(30,000) 

(4,283,875) 

5,978,842 

16,235,138 

7 
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KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash flows from/(used in) 
operating activities 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Bad debts recovered 
Deposits written off 
Depreciation 
Dividend income 
Gain on 
- derecognition of lease 

liabilities 
- disposal of plant and 

equipment 
• disposal of subsidiaries 
Interest expense 
Interest income 

Operating profit before 
working capital changes 

Increase In inventories 
(Increase)lOecrease in trade 
and other receivables 

Changes in contract 
assets/liabilities 

(Decrease)/Increase in trade 
and other payables 

Cash generated from 
operating activities 

Income tax paid 
Income tax refunded 

Net cash from operating 
activities 

Audited 
1.1.2023 

to 
30.6.2023 

RM 

3,807,333 

· 
· 

520,309 
· 

· 

(3,259) 
· 

76,191 
(107,706) 

4,292,868 

(589) 

(2.1 15,075) 

(682,497) 

(412.111) 

1,082,596 

(583.526) 
· 

499,070 

Unaudited 
1.1.2022 

to 
30.6.2022 

RM 

6,581.704 

· 
· 

527,296 
(278,951 ) 

(24,851 ) 

(10,847) 
· 

56,696 
(71.332) 

6,779,715 

(1.033) 

627,538 

(169,514) 

382.589 

7,619,295 

(719,380) 
1,083 

6,900.998 

Audited 
1.1.2022 

to 
31.12.2022 

RM 

9,434,147 

. 

. 
1,030,437 

(278.951) 

(24,851) 

(13,149) 
(5.829) 

144,391 
(185,095) 

10,101,100 

(423) 

941,417 

(8.117) 

1,103.870 

12,137,847 

(1,599,827) 
1,083 

10,539,103 

Audited 
1.1.2021 

to 
31.12.2021 

RM 

8,1 51,120 

(1,288,390) 
· 

1,045,011 
· 

· 

(3,220) 
· 

116.753 
(169.041) 

7,852,233 

(3,378) 

(381,848) 

169,514 

(683.161) 

6.953,360 

(1,603,500) 
· 

5,349,860 

Audited 
1.1.2020 

to 
31 .12.2020 

RM 

4,890,419 

· 
1,000 

1,319,468 
· 

· 

(4,960) 
· 

112,955 
(1 11,492) 

6,207,390 

· 

759.695 

· 

740.324 

7,707,409 

(3,539.337) 
· 

4,168,072 

8 
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KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malays ia) 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued) 

Cash flows froml(used in) 
investing activities 

Purchase of plant and 
equipment 

Subscription of shares in a 
subsidiary 

Advances to subsidiaries of 
Inspidea 

Repayments from! 
(Advances to) a company 
in which the directors 
have interest 

Decrease/(lncrease) in fixed 
deposits with maturity of more 
than 3 months 

Decrease in fixed deposits 
pledged 

Dividend received 
Proceeds from disposal of 
plant and equipment 

Interest received 

Net cash (used in)lfrom 
investing activities 

Cash flows from/(used in) 
financing activities 

Dividends paid 
Proceeds from issuance of 
shares 

Proceeds from borrowings 
Repayments of borrowings 
Repayments of lease liabilities 
Advances framJ 
(Repayments to) a director 

Inlerest paid 

Net cash used In financing 
activities 

Net (decrease)/increase in 
cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 
at beginning periodlyear 

Cash and cash equivalents 
at end of period/year 

Audited 
1.1.2023 

to 
30.6.2023 

RM 

(637,931 ) 

-

-

43,272 

-
-
-

3,259 
107,706 

(483,694) 

(6,204,127) 

2 
-

(99,585) 
(284,690) 

73,700 
(76,191 ) 

(6,590,891) 

(6,575,51~) 

13,401,158 

6,825,643 

Unaudited 
1.1.2022 

to 
30.6.2022 

RM 

(218,753) 

(30,000) 

-

(183,250) 

150,000 

220,000 
278 ,951 

10 ,847 
71,332 

299,127 

(3,OOO,227) 

-

-
(78,527) 

(315.415) 

-
(56,696) 

(3.450,865) 

3,f4~,l6ll 

9,398,908 

13,148,168 

Audited 
1.1.2022 

to 
31 .12.2022 

RM 

(565,534) 

(30,000) 

-

(427,454) 

150.000 

220,000 
278,951 

13,149 
185,095 

(175,793) 

(5.449,538) 

-
-

(175,375) 
(591 ,756 

-
(144,391 ) 

(6.361,060) 

4 ,Ulll ,Z5U 

9,398,908 

13,401,158 

Audited 
1.1.2021 

to 
31 .12.2021 

RM 

(51,333) 

-
(7,350) 

-

(1 ,500,000) 

-
-

3,220 
169,041 

(1,386,422) 

(10.660,696) 

3,652,251 
-

(125,620) 
(591 ,102 

-
(1 16,753) 

(7,841,920) 

(3,tl78.4tll) 

13,277,390 

9,398,908 

Audited 
1.1.2020 

to 
31 .12.2020 

RM 

(59,462) 

-

(15,877) 

-

-

-

4,960 
111 ,492 

41 ,113 

(1.716,322) 

-
1,000,000 

-
(570 ,887) 

(638) 
(1 12,955) 

(1,400,802) 

2,808,383 

10,469,007 

13,277,390 
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COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued ) 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31 .12.2022 31 .12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Cash and cash 
equivalents comprise : 

Cash and bank balances 1,750,643 4,573,1 68 5,826,158 2,108,908 6,600.231 
Fixed deposits with licensed 
ban ks 7,175,000 10,675,000 9,675,000 9,760,000 7,647,159 

8,925 ,643 15,248,1 68 15,501,158 11,868,908 14.247,390 
l ess: Fixed deposits 
pledged with licensed bank (750,000) (750,000) (750,000) (970,000) (970,000) 

l ess: Fixed deposits with 
IniUal maturtty of more than 
3 months (1,350,000) (1,350,000) (1,350,000) (1,500,000) 

6,825,643 13,148,168 13,401,158 9,398 ,908 13,277.390 

Reconci li ation of lIabllllles arising from financing activities 

Cash Non cash 
1.1.2023 flows changes 30.6.2023 

Audited RM RM RM RM 
Amount due to a director 73,700 73,700 
l ease liabilities 2,955 ,301 (284,690) 244,739 2,915,350 
Borrowin9s 699,005 (99,585) 599,420 

Cash Non cash 
1.1.2022 flows changes 30.6.2022 

Unaudited RM RM RM RM 
lease liabilities 1,639,990 (315,415) (507.302) 817,273 
Borrowings 874,380 (78,527) 795,853 

Cash Non cash 
1.1.2022 flow. changes 31.12.2022 

Audited RM RM RM RM 
lease liabilities 1,639,990 (591 ,756) 1,907,067 2,955,301 
Borrowings 874,380 (175,375) 699,005 

Cash Non cash 
1.1.2021 flows changes 31 .12.2021 

Audited RM RM RM RM 
lease liabilities 2,231,092 (591,102) 1,639,990 
Borrowings 1,000,000 (125,620) 874,380 

Cash Non cash 
1.1.2020 flows changes 31 .12.2020 

Audited RM RM RM RM 
Amount due to a director 638 (638) 
lease liabilities 2,801,979 (570,887) 2,231,092 
Borrowings 1,000,000 1,000,000 

10 
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NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. General information 

The Company was incorporated on 23 March 2023 under the Companies Act 2016 as a private 
lim ited liabili ty company under the name of Kucingo Sdn Bhd. The Company was incorporated for 
the purpose of being an investment holding company and listing vehicle for the Group pursuant 
to the listing of and quotation for the entire enlarged issued share capital of the Company on the 
ACE Market of Bursa Securities Malaysia Berhad ("listing"), On 24 July 2023, the Company 
cha nged its name to Kucingko Sdn Bhd. On 11 September 2023, the Company was converted to 
a public limited company and assumed its current name of Kucingko Berhad. 

The reg istered office of the Company is located at Level 5, Tower 8, Avenue 5, Horizon 2, Bangsar 
South City, 59200 Kuala Lumpur. 

The principal place of business of the Company is located at H-G-03A, Glomac Square, Jalan 
SS6116A, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya. 

1.1 Group structure 

The group structure prior to the pre-listing reorganisation and prior to the listing (also referred to 
as "Inspidea Group") is as follows: 

I 
Inspidea Sdn Bhd 

("Inspidea") 

I 
..,100% .., 100% ... 100% ... 100% 

Touri fie Toonigami Bowleh Fuloso 
Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd 

On 21 November 2023, the Company had entered into a conditional share sale agreement with 
the shareholders of Inspidea to acquire the entire equity interest in Inspidea comprising 4,910,703 
ordinary shares for a total purchase consideration of RM9,560,OOO. The purchase cons ideration 
is to be satisfied by the issuance of 399,999,997 new ordinary shares in of Kucingko Berhad 
(formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) ("Kucingko") ("Shares") to parties nominated by the 
shareholders of Insp idea at an issue price of RMO.0239 per Share. 

The corporate structure of Kucingko Berhad (formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) ("Kucingko' ) 
and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the ' Group") following the completion of acqu isition 
of Inspidea is as follows: 

Kucingko 

Inspidea 

100% 100% 100% 

Touri frc Sdn Bnd Toonigami Sdn Bhd Bowleh Sdn Bhd Fuloso Sdn Bhd 

11 
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1.2 List of entities and prinCipal activities prior to the listing 

Effective equity interest 
Country of 

Company Note incorporation 30.6.2023 31 .12.2022 31.12.2021 31 .12.2020 Principal activity 

Inspidea Sdn Bhd Malaysia NIA NIA NIA NIA Animation entertainment production 
and distribution 

Totirific Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Computer software development 
and internet services 

T oonigami Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Provision of computer animation 
solutions and services 

TSSRM Sdn Bhd 101 Malaysia 100.00% 100.00% Provision of computer animation 
("TSSRM") solutions and services 

Fuloso Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100.00% 100.00% 70.00% 70.00% Provision of games and content 
("Fuloso") development and production, 

marketing and distribution of 
games and digital content 

Bowieh Sdn Bhd Malaysia 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% Restaurant operator 
("Bowleh") 

Tapestreum Pte Ltd Ibl Singapore 100.00% 100.00% Publishing of gaming software and 
("Tapestreu m") applications and provision of 

computer animation solutions and 
services 

Arboratory limited 1'1 Hong Kong 100.00% 100.00% Publishing of computer software 
("Arboratory") development and application 

Subsidiary of Arboratory 
Limited 

Tessereum Limited 1'1 Hong Kong 96.56% Developing digital contents, games, 
("TSR") web~based apps and mobile based 

apps 

There have been no si9nificant changes in the nature of the principal activities during Ihese financial years and financial period under review. 

12 



Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

13. ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
 

Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

266

KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

1.2 List of entities and principal activit ies prior to the listing (continued) 

Notes: 

(a) On 30 June 2022, Inspidea declared a special single tier interim dividend in specie via a 
share distribution of 2,348,830 shares in Arboratory to the existing shareholders of Inspidea. 
Upon completion of the share dividend distribution, Inspidea ceased to have control In 
Arboratory and Arboratory ceased to be a subsidiary of Inspidea. 

(b) On 15 December 2022, Inspidea disposed of its entire shareholdings in Tapestreum for a 
cash consideration of RM96,625. As a result of the disposal , Tapestreum ceased to be a 
subsidiary of Inspidea. 

(cl On 31 December 2022, Inspidea entered into a Share Sale Agreement (-SSA"l with 
Arboratory to dispose Inspidea's 100% equity holdings in TSSRM for a cash consideration 
of RM391 ,203. Pursuant to the SSA, Inspidea ceased to have control in TSSRM and TSSRM 
ceased to be a subsidiary of Inspidea. 

2. Principal accounting policies 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

The combined financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Siandards (~MFRS' ) and the International Financial Reporting 
Standards nFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 

2.2 Basis of preparation of the combined financial statements 

2.2.1 Basis of preparation and accounting 

The combined financial statements of the Company for the financial years ended rFYE") 31 
December 2020, 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 (collectively referred as "relevant 
financial years") and financial period ended ("FPE") 30 June 2023 have been prepared pursuant to 
the listing which consist of the financial statements of the following entities under common control 
for each of the financial years/period. 

Accounting 
Entities under common standards 
control 31.12.2020 31 .12.2021 31.12.2022 30.6.2023 applied 
Kucingko Berhad (formerly 
known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd') + + + • > 

Inspidea Sdn Bhd • · • • > 
Tourific Sdn Bhd • · • • > 
Toonlgami Sdn Bhd • · • • > 
Fuloso Sdn Bhd • • • # > 
Bowleh Sdn Bhd · · · • > 

The audited financial statements of all the companies within the Group for the relevant financial 
years reported above were not subject to any qualification or modification. 

+ No financial statements were available as the Company was incorporated on 23 March 2023 
The combined financial statements of the Group for the respective financial years have been 
prepared based on the audited financial statements which were audited by Russell Bedford 
LC PLT 

# The financial statements of the Group for the financial period ended 30 June 2023 were audited 
by Russell Bedford LC PL T for the purpose of inclusion into the combined financial statements 
of the Group 

> The audited financial statements of all the companies within the Group for the relevantflnancial 
years/FPE were prepared in accordance with the MFRS and IFRS 

13 



Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

13. ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
 

Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

267

KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

2.2.1 Basis of preparation and accounting (continued) 

The Group has excluded all business and activity that will not form part of the new legal group of 
Kucingko Berhad (formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) from the combined financial statements 
(carve out basis) . As TSSRM, Tapestreum, Arboratory and TSR have been disposed of in FYE 31 
December 2022, the financial statements of these entities are not included in the combined financial 
statements for FYE 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 , 31 December 2022 and FPE 30 June 
2023. 

The financial information presented in the combined financial statements may not correspond to 
those in the consol idated financial statements of the Group had the relevant proposed transaction 
to legally constitute the Group been incorporated in the consolidated financial statements for the 
respective years. Consequently, the financial information from the combined financial statements 
do not purport to predict the financial position , resu lts of operations and cash flows of the combining 
entities during the reporting periods . 

The Group has adopted the new and revised MFRS and their related interpretations that become 
mandatory for the current reporting period. The adoption of these new and revised MFRS and Ie 
Interpretations does not result in significant changes in accounti ng policies of the Group. 

The Group has not adopted the new standards, amendments to published standards and Ie 
Interpretations that have been issued but not yet effective. These new standards, amendments to 
published standards and IC Interpretations do not result in . sign ificant changes in accounting 
pOlicies of the Group upon their initial application. 

2.2.2 Significant accounting policies 

Functional and presentation currency 

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("functional currency"). The 
combined financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"). 

Basis of combination 

The combined financial statements of the Group comprises the financial statements of the 
combining entities as disclosed in Note 2.2.1 . 

Entities under common control are entities which are ultimately controlled by the same parties 
and that control is not transitory. Control exists when the same parties have, as a result of 
contractual agreement, ultimate collective power to govern the financial statements and 
operating policies of each of the combin ing entities so as to obtain benefits from their 
activities, and that ultimate collective power is not transitory. The financial statements of 
common controlled entities are included in the combined financial statements from the day 
that control commences until the date that control ceases. 

The combined financial statements of the Group for the relevant periods were prepared in a 
manner as if the entities within the Group were operating as a single economic enterprise 
from the beginning of the earliest comparative period covered by the relevant period or the 
dates of incorporation of entities within the Group, if !ater. Such manner of presentation 
reflects the economic substances of the combining companies, which were under common 
control throughout the relevant period. 

The identified assets and liabilities of all commonly controlled entities are accounted for at 
their historical costs . The accounting policies of common controlled entities have been 
changed where necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group. 

14 
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2.2.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Basis of combination (continued) 

(ii) Business combination 

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at 
their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition related costs are recognised as expenses 
in the period in which the costs are incurred and the services are received. 

For each business combination , non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests 
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the event of 
liquidation are measured at the present ownership instruments' proportionate share of the 
recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net a ssets. All other components of non
controlling interests shall be measured at their acquisition-date fair values, unless another 
measurement bas is is required by MFRSs. 

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business 
combination, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair 
value of the acquiree's net identifiable assets and liabili ties is recorded as goodwill in the 
combined statement of financial position. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the 
former, the excess is recognised as a gain on bargain purchase in profit or loss on the 
acquisition date. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which control is 
obtained , and continue to be consolidated untillhe date that such control ceases . 

Non-control ling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or 
ind ireclly, to owners of Inspidea, and are presented within equity in the combined statement 
of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of Inspidea. Non-controll ing 
interests are presented in the combined statements of comprehensive income as an 
allocation of the profit or loss and the comprehensive income for the reporting period between 
non-controlling interests and the owners of Inspidea. Losses applicable to the non-controlii ng 
interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes 
the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance. 

Changes in Inspidea's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control 
are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the 
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative 
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling 
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recogn ised 
directly in equity and attributable to owners of Inspidea. 

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non
controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary are 
derecognised. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or 
loss. If any interest in the previous subsidiary is retained , then such interest is measured at 
fair value at the date that control is loss . Subsequently, it is accounted for as equity accounted 
investee or as an equity instrument financial asset depending on the level of influence 
retained. 

(iii) Transactions elim inated on combination 

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gain and losses resulting from 
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. 
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2.2.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue is recognised when or as a performance obligation in the contract with customer is 
satisfied, i.e. when the control of the goods or services underlying the particu lar performance 
obligation is transferred to the customer. A performance obligation is a promise to transfer a distinct 
goods or service (or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that 
have the same pattern of transfer) to the customer that is explicitly stated in the contract and implied 
in the Group's customary business practices. 

Revenue is measured al the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitted in 
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the customers, excluding amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties such as sales taxes and services taxes . If the amount of 
consideration varies due to discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, incentives, penalties or other 
similar items, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled based on 
the expected value or Ihe most likely outcome. If the contract with customer contains more than 
one performance obligation, the amount of consideration is allocated to each performance 
obligation based on the relative stand-alone selling prices of the goods or services promised in the 
contract. 

Revenue is recognised to the exten t that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the 
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the 
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. 

The control of the promised goods or services may be transferred over time or at a point in time. 
The control over the goods or services is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time 
if: 

a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's 
performance as the Group performs; 

b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the 
asset is created or enhanced; or 

c) the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and the Group has 
an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

Revenue for performance obligation that is not satisfied over time is recogn ised at a pOint in time 
at which the customer obtains control of the promised goods or services. 

Revenue is recognised only when it is probable that the Group will collect the considerations to 
which it will be enti tled to in exchange for the goods or services sold. 

Contract assets and liabilities 

A contract asset Is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the 
customer. If the Group periorms by transferring goods or services to a customer before the 
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the 
earned consideration that is conditional. A contract asset is stated at cost less accumulated 
impa irmenllosses, if any. 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group 
has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group 
transfers the goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when payment is 
made or the payment is due (wh ichever is earlier). Contracll iability is recognised as revenue when 
the Group performs under the contract. 
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2.2.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective funct ional currencies of the 
Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at 
exchange rates approximati ng those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are Iranslated at Ihe rates of exchange ruling at the reporting 
date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost 
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items 
at the reporting date are recognised in profit or loss . 

The principal exchange rates for every unit of foreign currency ruling at the reporting date are as 
follows: 

30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31 .12.2021 31.12.2020 
RM RM RM RM 

Australian Dollar 3.100 
Canadian Dollar 3.120 3.1 20 3.289 3.153 
Euro 4.973 4.680 4.805 4.941 
Hong Kong Dollar 0.530 0.530 0,534 0.518 
United States Dollar 4.667 4.567 4,239 4. 017 

Employee benefits 

( ;) Short term benefits 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in 
the reporting period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the 
Group. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are 
recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to fu ture 
compensated absences. Short term non accumulating compensated absences such as sick 
leave are recognised when the absences occur. 

(ii) Defined contribution plans 

Obligations for contribution to defined contribution plans such as Employees Provident Fund 
are recognised as an expense as incurred. 

Income tax 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the reporti ng period comprises current and deferred tax. Current 
tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the laxable profil for the reporling 
period and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax is provided for, using the 'li ability' method, on temporary differences at the reporting 
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts In the financial 
statements. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences 
and deferred tax assets are recognised for al l deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused lax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable proftt will be available aga inst 
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be 
utilised. 
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2.2.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Income tax (continued) 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the reporting period when 
the asset is realised or the liability settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is recognised in the profit or loss. 

Deferred tax assets and liabil ities are offset if there is legaUy enforceable right to o.ffset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax aulhority on the same 
taxable entity. 

Impairment of assets 

The carrying amount of assets subject to accounting for impairme nt (primarily non financial asset) 
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If 
any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is 
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it 
belongs exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss in the 
reporting period in which it arises. 

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and its value in use. In 
assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, 
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, an impairment 
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss Is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. The reversal is recognised in profit or 
loss. 

Plant and equipment and depreciation 

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, If 
any. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during 
the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Gain or loss arising from the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is recognised in profit or loss. 

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated to write off the cost of the assets to its residual 
values on a straight line basis at the following annual rates based on their estimated useful lives: 

Furn iture and fittings 
Office equipment 
Renovation 
Motor vehicle 

12% 
12% - 33% 

12% 
33% 
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2.2.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Plant and equipment and depreciation (continued) 

The residual values, useful life and depredation method are reviewed at each reporting date to 
ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates 
and the expected pattern of consumption of the fu ture economic benefits embodied in the items of 
plant and equipment. 

Investment in subsidiaries 

A subsidiary is a company controlled by Inspidea. Control exists when Inspidea has power over its 
investee, exposed or has rights to variable relurns from its involvement with the inveslee, and has 
the ability to affectlhose returns through its power over the investee. 

Inspidea's investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment losses, rt' any, 

Goodwill on consolidation 

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the 
cost of the business combination over Inspidea's interest in the net fair value of the net identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Goodwill is subsequent!y measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses and is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. 

Inventories 

Inventories consist of food and beverages are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Cost of inventories is determined on a first in first out basis. Cost of inventories comprises the cost 
of purchase plus the cost of bringing the inventories to their present location and condition . Net 
realisable value represents the estimated selling prices less all estimated costs to completion and 
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution, 

Leases 

As a lessee 

i) Right of use assets 

The Group recognises a right of use asset at the commencement date of the lease. The right of 
use asset is initially measured at cost. The cost of right of use assets includes the amount of 
lease liabilities recognised, adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement dale, plus initia l direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs 10 dismantle, 
remove or restore the leased asset, less any lease incentives received , 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the right of use asset is depreciated on a straight line bas is 
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life as follows: 

Office premises 
Apartment 

3-10years 
3 - 4 years 

Right of use asset is subject to impairment and is adjusted for any remeasurement of lease 
liabilities. 
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2.2.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Leases (conlinued) 

As a lessee (continued) 

ii) Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities at the present 
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable 
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be pa id under 
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase 
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for 
terminating a lease, if the assessment of lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to 
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised 
as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payments occurs . The 
present value of lease payments is discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if 
the rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate . 

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method . After the 
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of 
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. 

The amount of lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments 
arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the 
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee , or if the Group changes its 
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the 
lease liab ility is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the 
right of use asset, or is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right of use asset 
has been reduced to zero. 

The Group has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not conta in a purchase option, and leases of 
low value assets. The Group recogn ises the lease payments associated with these leases as an 
expense on a slraightline basis over the lease term. 

As a lessor 

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for 
on a straight line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue or other operating income, 
as appropriate, in profit or loss due 10 its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recogn ised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are 
recognised as revenue in the period in wh ich they are earned. 

Segment information 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which 
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Group's other components. An operating segment's operating results 
are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resou rces to 
be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for wh ich discrete financial 
information is available. 

20 



Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

13. ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
 

Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

274

KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

2.2.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has 
become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

A financial instrument (un less it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) is 
recognised initially at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial instrument not at fair 
value through profi t or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 
of the financial instrument. A trade receivable without significant financing component is initially 
measured at the transaction price. 

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement. Interests, dividends and gains and losses relating to a financial 
instrument (tlassified as a liability, are reported as expense or income in profit or loss. 

Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equi ty. 
Financial instruments are offset when the Group has legal enforceable right to offset and intends 
to settle either on a net basis or real ise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCn and fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities subsequently measured 
al fair value through profit or loss or at amortised cost, as appropriate. 

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost 

A financia l asset is classified at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions: 

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Subsequent to initial recognition , financial assets at amortised cost are measured using the 
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains or losses are recognised in profit 
or loss when the financial assets at amortised cost are derecognised or impaired, and through 
the amortisation process (finance income). 

(ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Financia l liabilities are classified at amortised cost if they are not: 

a) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination; 
b) financial guarantee contracts; 
c) loan commitments; 
d) designated at fair value through profit or loss; or 
e) liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition 

or when the continuing involvement approach applies. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortised cost are measured using the 
effective interest method. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the financial 
liabilities at amortised cost are derecognised, and through the amortisation process (finance 
cost). 
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2.2.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Financial instruments (continued) 

(iii) Equity instruments 

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the fair value of the proceeds received 
net of direct issue costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares 
are recognised in equity in the reporting period in which they are approved. 

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial assel expire or the financial asset is transferred to another party without 
retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. On derecognition of a financial 
asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received 
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss. 

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liabi lity, the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liab ility extinguished or transferred to another party and 
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

Expected credit losses 

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("Eel") for financial assets at 
amortised cost and contract assets. 

Eel are generally based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance 
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral 
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. Eel are recognised in 
profit or loss, 

Eel are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognit ion, EeL are provided for credit losses that resu lt from 
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month Eel) . For those credit 
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a 
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, 
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime Eel). 

For trade receivables and contract assets , the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating 
EeL. The Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based 
on lifetime Eel at each reporting date. Where appropriate, the Group has established a provision 
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking factors 
specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 

loss allowances for debt instruments measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the assets. 

22 



Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

13. ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
 

Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

276

KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

2.2 .2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Expected credit losses (continued) 

Low credit risk 

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if: 

a) the financial instrument has a low risk of default; 
b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obl igations in the near term; 

and 
c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not 

necessarily, red uce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. 

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when it has an internal or externa l credit 
rating of "investment grade" as per globally understood definition. 

Significant increase in credit risk 

When determining whether the credit risk of a debt instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Grou p considers reasonable and supportable information 
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and 
qualitative information and analysis. based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit 
assessment and including forward-looking information. 

The Group considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual 
payments are more than 30 days past due. 

Definition of default 

The Group considers a debt instrument to be in default when: 

a) The Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into 
account any credit enhancements held by the Group; or 

b) The financial asset is more than 90 days past due. 

Credit impaired financial assets 

A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred . Evidence that a financial asset is 
credit impaired includes the following observable events: 

a) Significant financial difficulties of the debtor; 
b) A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event; 
c) The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's 

financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not 
otherwise consider; 

d) It becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganisations; or 

e) Disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial dffficuities. 

Write off 

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual 
cash flows. Subsequent recoveries of a financial asset that was previously written off are recognised 
as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs. 
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2.2.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Current versus non-current classification 

Assets and liabilities are presented based on a currenUnon-current classification. An asset is current 
when it is: 

a) Expected to be real ised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle: 

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period . 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

a) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c) It is due to be settled with in twelve months after the reporting period; or 

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Statements of cash flows 

Statements of cash flows is prepared using the ind irect method. 

Cash equivalents are short term deposits with maturities of three months or less, highly liquid 
investments that are read ily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the cash flow statements , cash and cash 
equivalents are presented net of pledged fixed deposits and fixed deposits with maturity of more than 
three months. 

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the directors are required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and are based on historical 
experience and other factors , including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. 

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described above, management 
is of the opinion that there are no instances of application of judgement which are expected to have 
a significant effect on the amounts recogn ised in the financial statements. 
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3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued) 

Management believes that there are no key assumptions made concern ing the future, and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the report ing date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period , 

4. Revenue 

4 .1 Disaggregation of revenue 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1 .2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Type of goods 

or services 
Rendering of 

services 10,988,808 12,434,630 23,389,717 17,587,710 14.877,692 
Sales of goods 39,453 48,284 95,318 87,712 45,113 

11,028,261 12,482,914 23,485,035 17,675,422 14,922,805 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Geographical 

markets 
Austral ia 277,307 145,608 145,608 350,768 5,061 ,740 
Canada 3,110,292 3,228.669 7,166,073 7,953,627 5,887,222 
France 1,262,124 71 .235 160,142 4,282,436 1,699,532 
Hong Kong 238,327 
Japan 53,290 
Malaysia 39,453 48,284 95,318 87,712 45,113 
Mexico 10,807 
Netherlands 1,122,598 1,122,598 1,454,008 
Sin9apore 64,740 122,595 
United Kingdom 1,344,642 68,554 362,947 
United States of 

America 4,929,703 7,866,520 14,726,742 3,493,581 1,494,522 

11,028,261 12,482,914 23,485,035 17,675,422 14,922,805 
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4.1 

4.2 

Disaggregation of revenue (continued) 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31 .12.2022 31.12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Timing of 

revenue 
recognition 

Goods 
transferred at 
a point in time 39,453 48,284 95,318 87,712 45,113 

Services 
transferred at 
a point in ti me 10,988,808 12,434,630 23,389,717 17,587,710 14,877,692 

Total revenue 
from contracts 
with customers 11,028,261 12,482,914 23,485,035 17,675,422 14,922,805 

Contract balance 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31 .12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 

Contract liabilities 108,675 921,857 169,514 

Contract assets 629,775 760,460 

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights to consideration for work completed but not 
yet billed al the reporting dale. 

The contract liabilities primarily relates to the Group's obligation to transfer goods or services to 
customers for which the Group has received the consideration in advance or has billed the customers . 

The fo llowing table provides information of the contract balance: 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1 .2020 

to to to to 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
At beginn ing of period/year (161,397) (169 ,51 4) 
Advance consideration 

received/Bill ings 
issued during the period/ 
year (4,187,307) (5,097 ,125) (742,019) 

Revenue recognised during 
the period/year 4,869,804 5,105,242 572,505 

At end of period/year 521 ,100 (1 61 ,397) (169,514) 
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4.3 Performance obligations 

Satisfaction of performance Significant payment 
Nature of goods and services obligations terms 

Animation entertainment production Revenue is recognised at a point Generally due within 30 
and distribution in t ime when the services are to 45 days from billing 

rendered date 

Sale of food and beverages Revenue recognised upon Cash basis 
delivery of product 

4.4 Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations 

For practical expediency, no information is provided on the remaining performance obligations as at 
reporting date that have an original expected duration of one year or less as allowed under the 
paragraph 121(a) of MFRS 15. 

4.5 Financing components 

5. 

The Group does not have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods 
or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the 
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money. 

Staff costs 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31 .12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Defined 
contribution 
plan 554,102 380,572 809,107 682,288 763,514 

Other employee 
related 
expenses 129,801 105,815 278,620 188,860 227,607 

Salaries, 
allowance and 
bonus 4,387,581 3,970,819 8,316,698 6,841,603 6,384,958 

5,071,484 4,457,206 9,404,425 7,712,751 7,376,079 

The key management personnel comprises executive directors of the combined entities and whose 
remuneration is analysed as follows: 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1 .2022 1.1.2022 1,1.2021 1.1,2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Total 
remuneration 206,249 212,540 571,836 372,240 272,700 
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6. Profit from operations 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1 .2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31 .12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Profit from 
operations is 
arrived at after 
chargingl 
(crediting) 

Auditors' 
remuneration 
- current periodl 

year 8,335 12,753 57,106 45,074 41,000 
- under/(over) 

provision in 
prior years 6,316 (1,016) 

Bad debts 
recovered (1,288,390) 

Deposits written 
off 1,000 

Expenses 
relat ing to short 
term leases 
on premises 23,000 9,000 1,274 10,611 

Directors' 
remuneration 
of Inspidea 
Group 
- fees 13,200 126,400 90,000 
- other than 

fees 206,249 199,340 445,436 282,240 272,700 
Dividend income (278,951) (278,951) 
Realised 
loss/(gain) 
on foreign 
exchange (76,053) (91,330) 22,961 (53,078) (54,172) 

Gain on: 
- derecognit ion 

of lease 
liabilities (24,851 ) (24,851 ) 

- disposal of 
plant and 
equipment (3,259) (10,847) (13,149) (3,220) (4,960) 

- disposal of 
subsidiaries 
of Inspidea (5,829) 

Rental income (22,000) (35,644) (54,944) (60,487) (6,200) 
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7. Finance income 

Audited Unaud ited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30 .6.2022 31 .12.2022 31 .12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Interest income 
from fixed 
deposits 107,706 71,332 185,095 169,041 111,492 

6. Finance costs 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audi ted Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1 .2022 1.1 .2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31 .12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Interest expense 
on: 

Lease liabiliti es 64,710 41 ,785 116,144 82, 498 107,113 
Term loan 11,481 14,911 28,247 34,255 5,842 

76,191 56,696 144,391 116,753 112,955 

9. Income tax expense 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31 .12.2022 31 .12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Expected 
current income 
tax payable 

- current period! 
year (786,142) (602,B62) (1,435,752) (1,607,622) (1 ,185,109) 

- under provision 
in prior years (19 ,102) (9,31 4) (60 ,237) 

(766,142) (602,862) (1 ,454,854) (1,616,936) (1 ,265,346) 

Deferred tax 
(Note 14) 

- current periodl 

D D D year (13,000) 44 ,200 
- (over){under 

provision in 
prior years (36,800) 8,100 

(49.800) 52,300 

(786,142) (602,862) (1,454,854) (1 ,666,736) (1,213,046) 
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9. Income tax expense (continued) 

A reconciliat ion of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate 
to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate is as foUows: 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1 .2022 1.1 .2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Profit before tax 3,807,333 6,581,704 9,434,1 47 8,151,120 4,890,419 

Taxation at 
statutory tax 
rate of 24% (913,760) (1 ,579,600) (2,264,200) (1,956,300) (1 ,173,700) 

Expenses not 
deductible for 
tax purposes (65,677) (32 ,162) (52,252) (43,422) (208,000) 

Effect of lower 
tax rate for 
small and 
medium sized 
industries 46,195 42,000 42,000 42,000 34,300 

Income not 
subject to tax 171 ,000 161,300 94,900 352,200 126,291 

Deferred tax 
assets not 
recognised (23,900) (22,400) (43,200) (49,100) 

. Tax incentives 828,000 787,000 34,000 80,200 
Under provision 
of current tax 
in prior years (19,102) (9,314) (80,237) 

(Over)/Under 
provision of 
deferred lax 
in prior years (36,800) 8,100 

Income tax 
expense for the 
period/year (786,142) (602,862) (1,454,854) (1,666,736) (1 ,213,046) 
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10. Plant and equipment 

Furniture 
and Office Motor 

fittings equipment vehicle Renovation Total 
Audited RM RM RM RM RM 
Cost 

At 1 January 2020 581,452 5,851,996 2,663,129 9,096,577 
Additions 49,962 9,500 59,462 
Disposals (28,450) (28,450) 
Write offs (3,925) (3,925) 

At 31 December 2020 581,452 5,869,583 2,672,629 9,123,664 
Addilions 2,375 48,651 307 51,333 
Disposals (11,359) (11 ,359) 
Wri te offs (64,623) (64,623) 

At 31 December 2021 583,827 5,842,252 2,672,936 9,099,015 
Additions 265,284 300,250 565,534 
Disposals (222,947) (222,947) 

At 31 December 2022 583,827 5,884,589 2,973,186 9,441,602 
Additions 377,963 73,700 186,268 637,931 
Disposals (12,370) (12,370) 

At 30 June 2023 583,827 6,250,182 73,700 3,159,454 10,067,163 

Accumul ated 
depreciation 

AI 1 January 2020 422,008 5,022,367 1,722,137 7,166,512 
Charge for the year 42,647 461,743 202,330 706,720 
Disposals (28,450) (28.450) 
Write offs (3,925) (3,925) 

At 31 December 2020 464,655 5,451,735 1,924,467 7,840,857 
Charge for the year 34,152 222,563 175,548 432,263 
Disposals (11,359) (11,359) 
Wri te offs (64,623) (64 ,623) 

At 31 December 2021 498,807 5,598,316 2,100,015 8,197,138 
Charge for the year 28,461 206,148 172,026 406,635 
Disposals (222,947) (222,947) 

At 31 December 2022 527,268 5,581 ,517 2,272,041 8,380,826 
Charge for the 
period 10,086 116,916 2,027 88,148 217,177 

Disposals (1 2,370) (12,370) 

At 30 June 2023 537,354 5,686,063 2,027 2,360,189 8,585,633 

Carrying amount 

At 30 June 2023 46,473 564,119 71,673 799,265 1,481 ,530 

At 31 December 2022 56,559 303,072 701,145 1,060,776 

At 31 December 2021 85,020 243,936 572,921 901,877 

At 31 December 2020 116,797 417,848 748,162 1,282,807 
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11. Right of use assets 

Office 
premises Apartment Total 

Audited RM RM RM 
Cost 
At 1 January 2020f 31 December 2020 2,499,633 302,346 2,801,979 
Derecognition upon lease completion (103,415) (103,415) 

At 31 December 2021 2,396,218 302,346 2,698,564 
Lease mod ifications (918,897) (918,897) 
Additions 2,414,369 2,414,369 

At 31 December 2022 3,891,690 302,346 4,194,036 
Lease mod ifications 244,739 244,739 

At 30 June 2023 3,891 ,690 547,085 4.438,775 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 January 2020 
Charge for the year 508,692 104,056 612,748 

At 31 December 2020 508,692 104,056 612,748 
Charge for the year 508,692 104,056 612,748 
Derecognil ion upon lease completion (103,415) (103,415) 

At 31 December 2021 913,969 208,112 1,1 22,081 
Charge for the year 529,568 94,234 623,802 
Lease mod ifications (436,446) (436,446) 

AI 31 December 2022 1,007,091 302,346 1,309,437 
Charge for the period 262,344 40,788 303,132 

At 30 June 2023 1,269,435 343,134 1,612,569 

Carrying amount 

At 30 June 2023 2,622,255 203,951 2,826,206 

At 31 December 2022 2,884,599 2,884,599 

At 31 December 2021 1,482,249 94,234 1,576,483 

At 31 December 2020 1,990,941 198,290 2,189,231 
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12. Investment in subs idiaries 

Unquoted shares, at cost 
At beginning of period/year 
Subscription of shares in 

subsidiaries 
Disposal of subskliaries 
Transfer of shares via share 
divklend 

At end of period/year 

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows: 

Subsidiaries of 
Inspidea 

TSSRM Sdn Bhd 

Tapestreum Pte Lid • 

Arboratory Limited # 

Subsidiary of 
Arboratory Limited 

Tessereum Limited # 

country of 
incorporation 

Malaysia 

Singapore 

Hong Kong 

Hong Kong 

• No statutory audit requirement 

Audited Aud ited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.1 2.2022 31 .12.2021 

RM RM RM 

5,449 5,449 

1,730,198 
(481,999) 

(1,253,648) 

5,449 

Group's effective interest 
30.6.2023 31 .12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

96.56% 

# Tne financial statements of tne subsidiary is not audited by Russell Bedford LC PL T 

Aud ited 
31.12.2020 

RM 

5,449 

5,449 

Principal activity 
Provision of computer animation solutions 

and services 
Publisning of gaming software and 

applications and provision of computer 
animation solutions and services 

Publisning of computer software 
development and application 

Developing digital contents, games, web
based apps and mobile based apps 

The financia l statements of tne above subsidiaries are not included in the combined financial statements as explained in Note 2.2.1. 
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12.1 Acquis ition and subscription of shares In subsidiaries of Inspidea 

(a) On 29 January 2021 , a subsidiary of Inspidea, Arboratory, incorporated a subsidiary, TSR by 
subscribing to 12,000 ordinary shares and 5,500 Convertible Preference shares representing 
96.56% of the issued and paid up share capital of TSR for a tolal cash consideration of 
HKD562,OOO. TSR Is principally involved in developing digital contents, games, web-based 
apps and mobile based apps. 

(b) On 15 February 2022, Inspidea further subscribed for an add itional 105,900 ordinary shares in 
TSSRM for RM105,900 by way of capitalisation of amount due from TSSRM. The equity 
interest of Inspidea in TSSRM remain unchanged. 

(c) On 29 June 2022, Inspidea further subscribed for an add itional 2,338,830 ordinary shares in 
Arboratory for RM1 ,248,328 by way of capitalisation of amount due from Arboratory. The equity 
interest of Inspidea in Arboratory remain unchanged. 

(d) On 30 November 2022, Inspidea further subscribed for add itional 375,970 ordinary shares in 
TSSRM for RM375,970 by way of capitalisation of amount due from TSSRM. The equity 
interest of Inspidea in TSSRM remain unchanged. 

12.2 Disposal of subsidiaries of Inspidea 

13. 

14. 

The disposal of subsidiaries of Inspidea is explained in Note 1.2. 

Goodw ill 

Cost 

At beginning/end of 
period/year 

Deferred tax assets 

At beginning of period! 
year 

Recognised in profit or 
loss (Note 9) 

- current periodlyear 
- (over)/under provision in 

prior years 

At end of period/year 

Audited 
30.6.2023 

RM 

62,819 

Audited 
30.6.2023 

RM 

12,500 

12,500 

Audited 
31 .12.2022 

RM 

62,819 

Audited 
31 .12.2022 

RM 

12,500 

12,500 

Aud ited Audlted 
31.12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM 

62,819 62 ,819 

Audited Audited 
31 .12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM 

62,300 10,000 

(13,000) 44,200 

(36,800) 8,100 

12,500 62,300 
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14. Deferred tax assets (continued) 

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows: 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.S.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Deferred tax assets 12,500 12,500 14,800 66,700 
Deferred tax liabilities (2,300) (4,400) 

12,500 12,500 12,500 62,300 

Deferred tax liabilities are in respect of the following : 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Tax effects of excess of 

capital allowances over 
related depreciation 
of plant and equipment (2,300) (4.400) 

Deferred tax assets are in respect of the following: 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Gross 
Excess of depreciation of 

plant and equipment 
over related lax capital 
allowances 9,000 8,000 

Unutilised lax losses to be 
utilised up to 
financial year ending 
- 31 December 2029 111,600 111 ,600 79,200 79,200 
- 31 December 2030 128,900 128,900 106,300 160,300 
- 31 December 2031 56,100 56,100 57,500 
- 31 December 2032 153.500 153,500 
- 30 June 2033 98,000 

Unabsorbed capital 
allowances 85,000 81 ,000 72,700 38,300 

642,100 539,100 315,700 277,800 
Less: Deferred lax assets 

recognised (52,100) (52,100) (61,700) (277,800) 

Deferred tax assets not 
recognised 590,000 487,000 254,000 
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14. Deferred tax assets (continued) 

Audited Audited Audited Aud ited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Tax effect 
Excess of depreciation of 

plant and equipment 
over related tax capital 
allowances 2,000 2,000 

Unutilised tax losses to be 
util ised up to 
financial year ending 
- 31 December 2029 26,800 26,800 19,000 19,000 
- 31 December 2030 30,900 30,900 25,500 38,500 
- 31 December 2031 13,500 13,500 13,800 
- 31 December 2032 36,800 36,800 
- 30 June 2033 23,500 

Unabsorbed capital 
allowances 20,400 19,500 17,400 9,200 

153,900 129,500 75,700 66,700 
less: Deferred tax assets 

recognised (12,500) (12,500) (14,800) (66,700) 

Deferred tax assets not 
recognised 141,400 117,000 60,900 

Portion of deferred tax assets have not been recogn ised as it is not probable that taxable profit will 
be available in the foreseeable future to utilise these tax benefits. 

15. Inventories 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31 .12.2022 31.12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Food and beverage at 

cost 4,390 3,801 3,378 

Inventories of the Group recognised as an expense during the financial period/year are as follows: 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Aud ited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1 .2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Amount of 
inventories 
recognised as 
an expense 29,264 31,278 60,345 65,997 20,658 
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16. Trade receivables 

Amount due from 
subsidiaries of Inspidea 

Third parties 

Audited 
30.6.2023 

RM 

4,282,821 

4,282,821 

Audited 
31 .12.2022 

RM 

1,976,051 

1,976,051 

Audited 
31 .12.2021 

RM 

2,923,350 

2,923,350 

Audited 
31.12.2020 

RM 

247,116 
993,939 

1,241,055 

The Group's normal trade credit terms range from 30 days to 45 days (31 .12.2022: 30 days to 45 
days; 31.1 2.2021 : 30 days to 45 days; 31.12.2020: 30 days to 45 days). 

The following table details the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade receivables. 

Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 

RM RM RM 
Not impa ired or past due 2,042,976 1,663,001 1,604,458 
1 - 30 days past due not 

impaired 1,641,678 136,425 836,638 
31 - 60 days past due not 

impaired 598,167 176,625 160,313 
More than 60 days past 

due not impaired 321 ,941 

4,282,821 1,976,051 2,923,350 

The forei9n currency exposure profile of trade receivables is as follows : 

Australian Dollar 
Canadian Dollar 
Euro 
Hong Kong Dollar 
United States Dollar 

Audited 
30,6.2023 

RM 
128,943 

1,262,124 

2,891 ,754 

Audited 
31 .12.2022 

RM 

1,976,051 

Audited 
31.12.2021 

RM 

294,686 

2,601 ,879 

Audited 
31.12.2020 

RM 
1,241,055 

1,241,055 

Audited 
31.12.2020 

RM 

496,502 
274,019 
247,116 
223,41 8 
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17. Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Amount due from 

subsidiaries of Inspidea 
• outstanding sales 

consideration for 
software 1,238,740 1,238,740 

• unsecured interest free 
advances receivable 
on demand 113,538 106,188 

Amount due from 
companies in which 
the directors have 
interest 

• proceeds on disposal of 
other investments 487,828 487,828 

• unsecured interest free 
advances receivable 
on demand 6,262 49,534 

Deposits 184,695 184,932 175,549 176,822 
Prepayments 60,227 251,685 255,186 265,970 

739,012 973,979 1,783,01 3 1,787,720 

18. Fixed deposits with licensed banks 

Fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group of RM750,OOO (31.12.2022: RM750,OOO; 
31.12.2021 : RM970,000; 31.12.2020: RM970,OOO) have been pledged with licensed banks to 
secure for the facilities granted to the Group. 

19. Cash and bank balances 

The foreign currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances is as follows: 

Canadian Dollar 
Euro 
Hong Kong Dollar 
United States Dollar 

Audited 
30.6.2023 

RM 
312 
950 

53 
427,917 

Audited 
31.12.2022 

RM 
312 
950 

53 
3,870,935 

Audited 
31.12.2021 

RM 
315 

310,429 

170,993 

Audited 
31.12.2020 

RM 
404,282 
387,011 

649,250 
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20. Share capital and invested equity 

(i) Share capital 

Ordinary shares 

At beginning of period 
Issued during the period" 

At end of period 

Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 30.6.2023 

No. of 
shares RM 

2 2 

2 2 

• The financial statements of the Company had not been included in the combined financial 
statements for the financial years ended 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and 31 
December 2022 as the Company was only incorporated on 23 March 2023 to facil itate the 
listing. The RM2 issue of shares above is the Company's subscriber shares on the 
incorporation of the Company. 

(ii) Invested equity 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31 .12.2022 31 .12.2021 31.12.2020 

No. of No. of No. of No. of 
shares shares shares shares 

Ordinary shares 

At beginning of periodl 
year 

Issued during the period! 
year 

2,331,861 2,331,861 559,176 G 1,772,685 

At end of period/year 

Convertible Preference 
Share ("CPS") 

At beginning of period! 
year 

Issued during the period! 
year 

At end of period/year 

2,331 ,861 

G 
88,509 

2,420,370 

2,331,861 2,331,861 559,176 

G 24,000 G 64,509 

88,509 88,509 24,000 

2,420,370 2,420,370 583,176 
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20. Share capital and invested equity (continued) 

(ii) Invested equity (continued) 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Ordinary shares 

At beginning of periodl 

1 2331 .861 1 1 2.331 . 86~ 1 G year 559,176 
Issued during the periodl 

year 1,772,685 

At end of period/year 2,331 ,861 2,331 ,861 2,331 ,861 559,176 

Convertible Preference 
Share ("CPS") 

At beginning of period/ 4,279,566 4,279,566 2,400,000 12.400000 1 year 
Issued during the periodl 

year 1,879,566 

At end of period/year 4,279,566 4,279,566 4,279,566 2,400,QOO 

6,61 1,427 6,611,427 6,611,427 2,959,176 

For the purpose of these combined financial statements, the invested equity represents the 
share capital of Inspidea. 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by 
Inspidea. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions. 

The terms of the CPS are as follows: 

(a) Conversion right 

The holders of the CPS will have the option at any time to convert all or any portion 
of CPS at the applicable conversion ratio into new ord inary shares . 

(b) Conversion ratio 

The CPS shall be convertible into fully paid-up ordinary shares equivalent to a 
specified percentage of the enlarged capital of lnspidea pursuant to the terms of the 
Shareholders Agreement dated 28 November 2005 , Supplemental Shareholders 
Agreement dated 18 November 2018 and Supplemental Shareholders Agreement 
dated 21 April 2021 (collectively referred to as "Agreements"). 

(c) Dividends 

The holders of CPS are entitled to participate in dividends of Inspidea with the ordinary 
shareholders on an "as if converted" basis for any dividend declared, pursuant to the 
terms of the Agreements. 
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20. Share capital and invested equity (continued) 

21 . 

(ii) Invested equity (continued) 

(d) Voting right 

The holders of CPS shall have the right to the relevant number of voles equivalent to 
the number of ordinary shares into wh ich the CPS are convertible on any resolutions at 
any general meeting of Inspidea upon: 

(i) any resolution which attempts to vary the rights attached to the CPS howsoever; 
(ii) any resolution for the winding up of Inspidea; 
(iii) which in the opinion of any holder of the CPS will affect the interest of such holder 

in any manner whatsoever; andlor 
(iv) in any event, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2016. 

(e) Preference 

In the event of a liquidation, dissolution, winding up or distribution in specie of the assets 
of Inspidea, the holders of CPS shall be ranked in priority to the ordinary shareholders 
of Inspidea for payment of up to the total issue price of the CPS held. 

Borrowings 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31 .12.2022 31.12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Non current portion: 
Term loan 394,985 498,137 680,376 874,380 

Current portion : 
Term loan 204,435 200,868 194,004 125,620 

599,420 699,005 874,380 1,000,000 

The non current portion of 
term loan is payable 
as follows: 

Later than 1 year and not 
later than 2 years 211,682 208,013 200,905 194,004 

Later than 2 years and not 
later than 5 years 183,303 290,124 479,471 624,404 

Later than 5 years 55,972 

394,985 498,137 680,376 874,380 

The term loan is secured by way of: 
(i) Guarantee cover for 80% of the facility and interest from the Government of Malaysia under 

Special Relief Facil ity Scheme administered by Syarikal Jaminan Pembiayaan Perniagaan 
for an aggregate tenure of five years commencing on the date one day after the expiry of 
the moratorium period , and 

(ii) Joint and several guarantee by certain directors of Inspidea. 
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21. Borrowings (continued) 

The effective interest rate is as follows: 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31 .12.2021 31 .12.2020 

% % % % 

Term loan 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.20 

22. Lease liabilities 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30 .6.2023 31.12.2022 31 .12.2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Current portion 533,311 497,379 550,1 38 591,102 
Non current portion 2,382,039 2,457,922 1,089,852 1,639,990 

2,915,350 2,955,301 1,639,990 2,231,092 

The non current portion of 
lease liabilities is 
payable as follows: 

later than 1 year and not 
later than 2 years 500,518 408,572 473,268 550,138 

later than 2 years and not 
later than 5 years 868,182 908,855 616,584 1,089,852 

later than 5 years 1,013,339 1,140,495 

2,382,039 2,457,922 1,089,852 1,639,990 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

% % % % 

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.20 

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of RM372,400 (31 .12.2022: RM716,900; 31 .12.2021: 
RM674,874; 31.12.2020: RM688,61 1; 30.6.2022: RM357,200). 

23. Trade payables 

The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group is 30 days (31 .12.2022: 30 days; 31.12.2021 : 
30 days; 31 .12.2020: 30 days). 
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24. Other payables and accruals 

Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 

RM RM RM 
Software subscription 

license payable to a 
company in which the 
directors have interest 401,603 202,983 

Amount due to a director 73,700 
Other payables and 

accruals 1,681 ,254 2,403,321 1,505,703 

2,156,557 2.606,304 1,505,703 

The foreign currency exposure profile of other payables and accruals is as follows : 

Hong Kong Dollar 

Audited 
30.6.2023 

RM 

401,603 

Audited 
31 .12.2022 

RM 

202,983 

Audited 
31.12.2021 

RM 

Audited 
31 .12.2020 

RM 

2,159,822 

2,159.822 

Audited 
31.12.2020 

RM 

43 



Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

13. ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
 

Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

297

KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kudngo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

25. Dividends 

Amount of dividend 
Audited Audited Audited Aud ited 

30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 
RM RM RM RM 

Single tier second interim 
dividend of RMO.58 per 
ordinary shares for year 
2019 324,322 

Single tier second interim 
dividend of RM58.00 per 
CPS for year 2019 1,392,000 

Single tier interim dividend 
of RM5.54 per ordinary 
shares for year 2020 3,502,981 

Special single tier interim 
dividend of RM11.32 per 
ordinary shares for year 
2020 7,157,715 

Single tier interim dividend 
of RM17.80 per CPS for 
year 2021 1,575,460 

Single tier interim dividend 
of RMO.61 per ordinary 
share for year 2021 1,424,767 

Special single tier interim 
dividend of RM7.44 per 
CPS for year 2021" 658,350 

Special single tier interim 
dividend of RMO.26 per 
ordinary share for year 
2021" 595,298 

Single tier final dividend of 
RM14.50 per CPS for 
year 2021 1,283,380 

Single tier final dividend of 
RMO.50 per ordinary 
shares for year 2021 1,165,931 

Single tier final dividend of 
RM36.90 per CPS 3,265,982 

Single tier final dividend of 
RM1.26 per ordinary share 2,938,145 

6,204,127 6,703,186 10,660,696 1,716,322 

* The dividends were declared and paid in specie via a share dividend distribution of 2,348,830 
shares in Arboratory to the existing shareholders of Inspidea. 
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26. Significant related party disclosures 

26.1 Identities of related parties 

26.2 

26.3 

For the purposes of these combined financial statements, par ties are considered to be related to 
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or 
exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice 
verse, or where the Group and the parties are subject to common control. Related parties may be 
ind ividuals or other entities. 

Related parties of the Group include: 

(i) Combining entities as disclosed in Note 2.2.1 of these combined financial statements; 
(ii) Companies in which the directors have interest; and 
(i ii) Key management personnel who are defined as those personnel having authority and 

responsibility for planning, directing and controll ing the activities of the entity either direclly 
or indirectly . 

Related party transactions 

Significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31 .12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
With companies 
in which the 
directors have 
interest: 

Subscription of 
software 
license 401,602 384,404 789,551 762,840 732,780 

Rendering of 
service 369,711 

Reimbursement 
of staff costs 88 ,089 97,109 417,953 

Dividend income 278,951 278,951 

Compensation of key management personnel 

The key management personnel comprise directors of the combined entities whose remuneration 
are disclosed in Note 5. 
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27. Segment information 

For management pu rposes, the Group is organised into business units based on the nature of 
business and has four reportable operating segments as follows: 

An imation services 

Information Technology ("IT") 
services 

Food and beverage 

Others 

Animation entertainment production and distribution 

Software and hardware distribution, IT and network 
infrastructure support and technology training 

Restaurant operator 

Investment hold ing and other businesses that do not fa ll 
into above segments 

All the above reportable segments operate in Malaysia. 

Management monitors the operating results of its business units as well as relying on the segment 
information as disclosed below for the purpose of making decision about resource allocation and 
performance assessment. 

46 



Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

13. ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
 

Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

13. ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
 

Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

300

KUCINGKO BERHAD 
(Formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporaled in Malaysia) 

27,1 Business segment 

The following table provides an analysis of Group's revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other information by business segment. 

Animation Food and 
Audited services IT services beverage Others Elimination 
1 January 2023 to 30 June 2023 RM RM RM RM RM 
Revenue 

External revenue 10,988,808 39,453 
Inter-segment revenue 120,256 579,668 28,402 (728,326) 

Total revenue 11,109,064 579,668 67,855 (728,326) 

Results 

ProfiU(Loss) from operations 3,856,632 37,506 (109,214) (1,365) (7,741) 
Finance income 104,850 2,053 803 
Finance costs (76,191) 

ProfiU(Loss) before tax 3,885,291 39,559 (109,214) (562) (7,741) 
Income tax expense (779,902) (6,077) (163) 

Net profrt/(Ioss) for the period 3,105,389 33,482 (109,214) (725) (7,741) 

Total 
RM 

11 ,028,261 

11,028,261 

3,775,818 
107,706 
(76,191 ) 

3,807,333 
(786,142) 

3,021 ,191 
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27.1 Business segment (continued) 

Animation Food and 
Unaud ited services IT services beverage Others Elimination Total 
1 January 2022 to 30 June 2022 RM RM RM RM RM RM 
Revenue 

External revenue 12,434,630 48,284 12,482,914 
Inter-segment revenue 147,876 235,134 39,140 (422,150) 

Tota! revenue 12,582,506 235,134 87,424 (422,150) 12,482,914 

Results 

Profitl(loss) from operations 7,125,668 (70,139) (105,300) (1 ,243) (381 ,918) 6,567,068 
Finance income 70,631 615 86 71 ,332 
Finance costs (56,696) (56,696) 

Profit/floss) before tax 7,139,603 (69,524) (105,300) (1,157) (381 ,918) 6,581 ,704 
Income tax expense (602,S62) (602,862) 

Net profit/(Ioss) for the period ' 6,536,741 (69,524) (105,300) (1,157) (381 ,918) 5,978,842 
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27.1 Business segment (continued) 

Animation Food and 
Audited services IT services beverage Others Elimination Total 
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 RM RM RM RM RM RM 
Revenue 

External revenue 23,389,717 95,318 23,485,035 
Inter-segment rellenue 282,365 913,748 69,131 (1,265,244) 

Total revenue 23,672,082 913,748 164,449 (1,265,244) 23,485,035 

Results 

Profitl(loss) from operations 9,408,873 (288) (201,952) (6,929) 193,739 9,393,443 
Finance income 182,637 1,707 751 185,095 
Finance costs (144,391) (144,391) 

Profitl(loss) before tax 9,447,119 1,419 (201,952) (6,178) 193,739 9,434,147 
Income tax expense (1,454,321) (380) (153) (1,454,854) 

Net profiV(loss) for the year 7,992,798 1,039 (201,952) (6,331) 193,739 7,979,293 
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27.1 Business segment (continued) 

Animation Food and 
Audited services IT services beverage Others Elimination Total 
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 RM RM RM RM RM RM 
Revenue 

External revenue 17,587,710 87,712 17,675,422 
Inter-segment revenue 208,374 804,630 63,360 (1,076,364) 

Total revenue 17,796,084 804,630 151,072 (1 ,076,364) 17,675.422 

Results 

Profitf(Loss) from operations 8,278,093 53,766 (1 11,506) (8,147) (1 13,374) 8,098,832 
Finance income 166,404 1,799 838 169,041 
Finance costs (11 6,753) (1 16,753) 

Profitf(Loss) before tax 8,327,744 55,565 (1 11,506) (7,309) (1 13,374) 8,151 ,120 
Income tax expense (1,616,256) (13,380) (36,800) (300) (1,666,736) 

Net profitf( loss) for the year 6,71 1,488 42,185 (148,306) (7,609) (1 13,374) 6,484,384 
Non-controll ing interesls 2,283 2,283 

Net profitf( loss) attributable 10 owners of the 
Company 6,713,771 42,185 (148,306) (7,609) (1 13,374) 6,486,667 
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27.1 Business segment (continued) 

Animation Food and 
Aud ited services IT services beverage Others Elimination Total 
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 RM RM RM RM RM RM 
Revenue 

External revenue 14,877,692 45,113 14,922,805 
Inter-segment revenue 581,174 70,990 (652, 164) 

Total revenue 14,877,692 581,174 116,103 (652,1 64) 14,922,805 

Results 

Profit/CLoss) from operations 5,157,032 (108,064) (135,297) (8,912) (12,877) 4,891,882 
Finance income 109,063 1,983 446 111,492 
Finance cosls (112,955) (112,955) 

Profit/CLoss) before lax 5,153,1 40 (106,081 ) (135,297) (8,466) (12,877) 4,890,419 
Income tax expense (1.264,903) 25,057 26,800 (1.213,046) 

Net profit/(Ioss) for the year 3,888,237 (81 ,024) (108,497) (8,466) (12,877) 3,677,373 
Non-controlling interests 2,540 2,540 

Net profit/(Ioss) attributable to owners of the 
Company 3,890,777 (81,024) (108,497) (8,466) (12,877) 3,679,913 
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27.1 Business segment (continued) 

Audited 
30.6.2023 
Assets and l iabilities 

Segment assets 

Segment liabilities 

Other information 
Capital expenditure on plant arid equipment 

and right of use assets 
Depreciation 

Animation 
services 

RM 

19,009,844 

6,235,764 

900,785 
510,240 

IT services 
RM 

424,739 

148,539 

Food and 
beverage 

RM 

119,393 

699,789 

400 
11 ,180 

Others 
RM 

69,814 

2,081 

Elimination 
RM 

(659,094) 

(724,821 ) 

(18,515) 
(1,111) 

Total 
RM 

18,964,696 

6,361,352 

882,670 
520,309 
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27.1 Business segment (continued) 
Animation Food and 

Audited services IT services beverage Others Elimination Total 
31,12,2022 RM RM RM RM RM RM 
Assets and liabilities 

Segment assets 23,307,413 295,628 130 ,109 73,019 (570,026) 23,236,143 

Segment liabilities 7,434,595 52,910 601 ,291 4,563 (643,494) 7,449,865 

Other information 

Capital expend iture on plant and equipment 
and right of use assets 2,989,782 (9,879) 2,979,903 

Depreciation 987,878 45,852 (3,293) 1,030,437 

Audited 
31 .12,2021 

Assets and liabilities 

Segment assets 19,732,766 253,864 171 ,611 79,592 (1 ,098,973) 19,138,860 

Segment liabilities 4,774,560 12,185 440,841 4,805 (633,702) 4,598,689 

Other information 

Capital expenditure on plant and equipment 190,749 340 (139,756) 51 ,333 
Depreciation 1,011,379 53,087 (19,455) 1,045,011 

Audited 
31.12,2020 

Assets and liabilities 

Segment assets 21,017,247 246,950 276,623 85,896 (746,862) 20,879,854 

Segment liabilities 5,762,084 47,456 397,547 3,500 (394,965) 5,815,622 

Other information 

Capital expenditure on plant and equipment 52,127 7,335 59,462 
Depreciation 1,266,905 52,563 1,319,468 
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27.1 Business segment (continued) 

Audited 
1 January 2023 to 30 June 2023 
Non-cash items otner tnan depreciation 

Not applicable 

Unaud ited 
1 January 2022 to 30 June 2022 

Non-cash items otner tnan depreciation 
Gain on derecognition of lease liabilities 

Audited 
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 

Non-cash items other than depreciation 

Allowance for expected credit loss 
Impairment loss of investment in a 

subsidiary 
Gain on derecognition of lease liabilities 

AUdited 
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 
Non-cash items other than depreciation 

Not applicable 

Audited 
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 

Non-cash items other than depreciation 

Deposits written off 

Animation 
services 

RM 

(24,851 ) 

431 ,965 

149,999 
(24,851) 

1,000 

IT services 
RM 

Food and 
beverage 

RM 
Others 

RM 
Elimination 

RM 

{431 ,965) 

(149,999) 

Total 
RM 

(24,851) 

(24,851) 

1,000 
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27 ,2 Customers segment information 

Revenue from transactions with major customers arising from animation services segment that 
individually accounted for 10 percent or more of the Group's revenue are summarised below: 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 
1.1.2023 1.1.2022 1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 

to to to to to 
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM RM 
Customer A 2,926 ,299 5,135,621 8,895,297 7,885,946 4,925,429 
Customer B 2,808 ,928 1,785,077 4,320,895 1,918,290 3,775,158 
Customer C 2,053 ,604 1,746,961 4,274 ,563 2,386,002 
Customer 0 1,262,124 1,284,207 2,458,859 

9,050 ,955 9,951,866 19,949,614 9,804,236 11,086.589 

28. Financial instruments and financial risk management 

28.1 Categories of financiat instruments 

28.2 

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the reporting date: 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Financial assets 
Amortised cost 
- trade and other receivables 4,961 ,606 2,698,345 4,451,177 2,762,805 
- fixed deposits with licensed 

banks 7,175,000 9,675,000 9,760,000 7,647,159 
- cash and bank balances 1,750 ,643 5,826,158 2,108,908 6,600,231 

13,887,249 18,199,503 16,320,085 17,010 ,195 

Financial liabiliti es 
Amortised cost 
- trade and other payables 2,272,909 2,611 ,320 1,507,450 2,190,611 
- borrowings (floating rate) 599,420 699,005 874,380 1,000,000 
- lease liabilities (fixed rate) 2,915,350 2,955,301 1,639,990 2,231,092 

5,787,679 6,265,626 4,021 ,820 5,421 ,703 

Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Group's overall financial risk management programme seeks to minimise potential adverse 
effects on financial performance of the Group. 

The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. 

There has been no change in the Group's exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which 
it manages and measures the risk. 
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28.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) 

Foreign exchange risk management 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates . 

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in currency other than 
the functional currency of the Group companies at the reporting date are disclosed in the respective 
notes to the financial statements. 

The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% Increase and decrease in the relevant foreign 
cur"rencies against the functional currency of the Group companies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used 
when report ing foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents 
management's assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis 
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items adjusted at the period end 
for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. If the relevant foreign currencies strengthen by 10% 
against the functional currency, profit before tax will increasef(decrease) by: 

Audited 
1.1.2023 

to 
30.6.2023 

RM 
Australian Dollar , 2,900 
Canadian Dollar 
Euro 126,300 
Hong Kong 

Dollar (40,200) 
United States 

Dollar 332,000 

Unaudited 
1.1.2022 

to 
30.6.2022 

RM 

76,800 
100 

(38,400) 

464,300 

Audited 
1.1.2022 

to 
31.12.2022 

RM 

31 
95 

(20,293) 

584,699 

Audited 
1.1.2021 

to 
31.12.2021 

RM 

29,500 
31,043 

277.287 

Audited 
1.1.2020 

to 
31 .12.2020 

RM 

90,078 
66,103 

24,712 

87.267 

The opposite applies if the relevant foreign currencies weaken by 10% against the functional currency. 

Interest rate risk management 

The Group's primary interest rate risk relates to interest bearing debts. The information on maturity 
dates and effective interest rates of f inancial liabilities are disclosed in their respective notes. 

No sensitivity analysis is prepared as the Group is not exposed to interest rate risk. The interest rates 
on interest bearing debts are fixed. 
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28.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) 

Credit risk management 

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables and bank 
balances. The Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit worthy 
counterparties. At reporting date, there were no significant concentrations of cred it risk other than 
as follows: 

Audited Audited Audited Audited 
30.6.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Bank balances with two 

financia l institutions 7,293,693 14,325,194 9,184,990 12,593,916 

The Group's credit risk grading framework for ECl model is as follows: 

Basis for recognition of 
Category Definition Eel 
Performing The debtor has a low risk of default and a 12-month Ee l 

strong capacitv to meet contractual cash flows . 
Doubtful Amount is > 30 days past due or there has been Lifetime ECL not credit 

a significant increase in credit risk since initial impaired 
recoanition . 

Default Amount is > 90 days past due or there is Lifetime Eel credit 
evidence indicatina the asset is credit impaired. imoaired 

Write off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off 
severe financial difficulty and there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery . 

i) Trade receivables and contract assets 

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach 
to measure the loss allowance at lifetime expected credit losses. Where appropriate, the 
Group determines the Eel on these items by using a provision matrix, estimated based on 
historical cred it loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as 
appropriate to reflect curre nt conditions and estimates of future economic conditions . In 
determining the Eel of other trade receivables, management has taken into account the 
historical default experience and the financial position of the counterparties , adjusted for 
factors that are specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the industry in 
which the debtors operate, in estimating the probability of default of each of these financial 
assets occurring, as well as the loss upon default in each case . There has been no change 
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting 
period . 
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28.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) 

Credit risk management (continued) 

ii) Other receivables 

Other receivables are considered to have low credit risk as they are not due for payment 
at the end of the reporting period and there has been no significant increase in the risk of 
default on the receivables since initial recognition . Accordingly , for the purpose of 
impairment assessment for these receivables, the loss allowance is measured at an 
amount equal to 12-month ECL. In determining the ECl , management has taken into 
account the historical default experience and the financial position of the counterparties , 
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the 
industry in which the debtors operate, in estimating the probability of default of each of 
these financial assets occurring, as well as the loss upon default in each case. There has 
been no change in the estimation techniques or sign ificant assumptions made during the 
current reporting period . 

iii) Cash and bank balances (including fixed deposits) 

The cash and bank balances are held with reputable financial institutions with high credit 
ratings and no history of default. Impai rment on cash and bank balances has been 
measured on a 12-month ECl and reflects the short term maturities of the exposures The 
Group considers that its cash and bank balances have low credit risk based on the external 
credit ratings of the financial institutions. There has been no change in the estimation 
techn iques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period . 
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28.2 Financial risk management objectives and poticies (continued) 

Liqu idity risk management 

The Group maintains sufficient cash and bank balances, and internally generated cash flows to finance its aclivities. The Group finances its operations 
by a combination of equily and bank borrowings . In addition, the Group has available banking facil ities to meet its liquidity and working capital 
requirements. 

The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabili ties. The tables have been drawn up based on the 
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earl iest date on which the Group can be required to pay. 

Carrying 
amount 

Audited RM 
30,6.2023 
Non interest bearing debts 2,272 ,909 
Interest bearing debts 599,420 
Lease liabilities 2,915,350 

5,787,679 

Audited 
31.1 2.2022 
Non interest bearing debts 2,611 ,320 
Interest bearing debts 699,005 
Lease liabilities 2,955,301 

6,265,626 

Contractual cash flows (including interest payments) 
On demand Within Within 

or with in 110 2 to 
Total 1 year 2 years 5 years 

RM RM RM RM 

2,272,909 2,272,909 
629,428 222,132 222,132 185,164 

3,376,500 645,000 591,000 1,045,500 

6,278,837 3,140,041 813,132 1,230,664 

2,611,320 2,611 ,320 
740,440 222,132 222,1 32 296,176 

3,465,000 612,000 504,000 1,104,000 

6,816,760 3,445,452 726,132 1,400,176 

More 
than 

5 years 
RM 

1,095,000 

1,095,000 

1,245,000 

1,245,000 
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28.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) 

liquidity risk management (continued) 

Carrying 
amount 

Audited RM 
31 .12.2021 
Non interest bearing debts 1,507,450 
Interest bearing debts 874,380 
Lease liabil ities 1,639,990 

4,021 ,820 

Audited 
31 .12,2020 
Non interest bearing debts 2,190,611 
Interest bearing debts 1,000,000 
Lease liabil ities 2,231 ,092 

5,421 ,703 

Contractual cash flows (including interest payments) 
On demand Within Within More 

or within 1\0 2 to than 
Total 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years 

RM RM RM RM RM 

1,507,450 1,507,450 
962,612 222,1 32 222,132 518,348 

1,760,900 608,400 510,000 642,500 

4,230,962 2,337,982 732,132 1, 160,848 

2,1 90,611 2,190,611 
1.110,700 148,088 222,132 666,396 74,084 
2,434,500 673,600 608,400 1,152,500 

5,735,811 3,012,299 830,532 1,818,896 74,084 
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28.3 Capital structure and capital risk management 

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities In the Group will be able to continue as going 
concern while providing an adequate return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and 
equ ity balance . 

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure 
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics 
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capi tal structure, the Group may adjust the 
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell 
assets to reduce debl. 

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-ta-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated 
as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debl is calculated as total debt (as shown in the statements 
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of 
equity that are managed as capital. 

The debt-to-adjusted capital ra tios at the end of each reporting period were as fonows: 

Audited Audited Audited AUdited 
30.6.2023 31 .12.2022 31.12 .2021 31 .12.2020 

RM RM RM RM 
Total debts 3.514,770 3,654 ,306 2.51 4,370 3.231 ,092 
Less: Cash and bank 

balances and fixed 
depOSits (8,925,643) (15,501, 158) (11,868,908) (14,247,390) 

Net cash (5,410,873) (11.846.852) (9,354,538) (11,016,298) 

Total equity/Adjusted 
capital 12,603,344 15,786 ,278 14,540,171 15,064,232 

Debt-la-adjusted capital 
ratio (times) NfA NfA NfA NfA 

There were 
periods. 

no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during these reporting 

29. Fair va lue measurements 

29.1 Financial instruments not carried at fai r value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable 
approximation of fair value 

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents. trade and other receivables and payables. and 
other liabilities approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of 
these financial instruments. 

The fair values of the Group's term loan and lease liabilities approximate their carrying amounts. 
Term loan is a floating rate instrument that is re-priced to market interest rates on or near reporting 
date. Lease liabilities approximates their carrying amounts as these instruments were entered/initially 
recognised with interest rates which are reasonable approximation of the market interest rates on or 
near reporting date. 
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30. Events subsequent to the reporting period 

On 27 Ju ly 2023, Inspidea acquired 1 ordinary share owned by the non controlling interest in Bowleh 
for a cash consideration of RM1. With the acquisition, Bowleh became a whoUy owned subsidiary of 
Inspidea. 

62 



Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

13. ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
 

Registration No.: 202301011068 (1504989-A)

316

KU CIN GKO BERHAD 
(Fomerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 

The directors nominated by KUCINGKO BERHAO (formerly known as Kudngo Sdn Bhd) state that, in 
the opinion of the directors, the combined financial statements are drawn up In accordance with the 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and the International Financial Reporting Standards, so as to 
give a true and fa ir view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 , 31 December 
2021 , 31 December 2022 and 30 June 2023, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for 
the years ended on 31 December 2020 , 31 December 2021,31 December 2022 and for the financial 
period 1 January 2023 to 30 June 2023. 

Signed on behal f of the Board of Directors of Kucingko Berhad (formerly known as Kucingo Sdn Bhd) in 
accordance with a resolut ion of the directors, 

C!3 

OOI~ 

Kuala Lumpur 

Dated , 
24 NOV 2t123 
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